
To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

DATE: September 17, 2025 

TIME: 6:30 pm 

LOCATION: CWSD Conference Room 

777 E. William Street, Suite 209, Carson City, NV  89701 

The meeting will be preceded by tour of Marlette Dam. The Board will meet at 2:45 pm at 
Spooner Yard.  See attached map. The Board meeting and a catered dinner will be held in 
the CWSD Conference Room afterwards. A quorum of the CWSD Directors may be present 
at the events preceding the board meeting, but no action will be taken. 

CWSD encourages Board Members to attend meetings, but virtual attendance may be 
available via Zoom.  If you prefer to phone in, call (669) 900-9128.  Meeting ID:  821 6039 
9847; Passcode:  104262. 

AGENDA 

Please Note: The Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board may: 1) take agenda items out of order; 
2) combine two or more items for consideration; and/or 3) remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
related to an item at any time.  All votes will be conducted by the CWSD Board of Directors.  Reasonable efforts will
be made to assist and accommodate individuals with limited ability to speak, write, or understand English or those
with disabilities who wish to join the meeting.  Please contact Catrina Schambra at (775)887-7450 or email:
catrina@cwsd.org at least 3 business days in advance so that arrangements can be made.

1. Call to Order the CWSD Board of Directors/Carson River Watershed Committee

2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment  (Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and
end of the meeting and may be taken at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items listed for possible
action. Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until scheduled for
action at a later meeting. Public comment during meetings is limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

5. For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda

6. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Board Meeting Minutes of August 20, 2025

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Please Note:  All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the 
Board of Directors with one action and without extensive hearing.  Any member of the Board or any citizen may 
request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted upon separately during this meeting. 

7. For Possible Action:  Approval of the Treasurer’s Report for August 2025

8. For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for August 2025

**END CONSENT AGENDA** 

Carson Water Subconservancy District 
Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 

Page 1 of 42

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82160399847?pwd=WGFDqWP7t4IiVAd60aMNIAdbv0AR9f.1
mailto:catrina@cwsd.org


Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors & Carson River Watershed Committee 
9/17/2025 Meeting Agenda 

To promote cooperative actions with communities to protect the Carson River Watershed. 

9. For Discussion Only:  Carson River Master Plan Presentation

10. For Discussion Only:  Staff Reports

• General Manager

• Legal

• Correspondence

11. For Discussion Only:  Directors & Committee Members Reports

12. For Discussion Only:  Public Comment (Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and
end of the meeting and may be taken at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items listed for possible
action. Action may not be taken on any matter brought up under public comment until scheduled for
action at a later meeting. Public comment during meetings is limited to three minutes for each speaker.)

13. Adjournment

Supporting material for this meeting may be requested from Catrina Schambra at 
775-887-7450 (catrina@cwsd.org) and is available on the CWSD website at https://www.cwsd.org

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

The undersigned affirms that on or before 10 am on September 10, 2025, a copy of the Notice of Public Meeting 
and Agenda for the September 17, 2025, meeting of the Carson Water Subconservancy District Board of Directors, 
per 
NRS 241.020 was posted at the following locations:  Carson Water Subconservancy District, 777 E. William St, 
Ste 209, Carson City, NV 89701; CWSD Website:  https://www.cwsd.org; and Nevada Public Notice Website:  
https://notice.nv.gov/ 

____________________________________ 
Catrina Schambra, CWSD Office Manager 

 September 10, 2025,  10am 
__________________________ __________ 
Date & Time of Posting

Page 2 of 42

https://www.cwsd.org/
https://www.cwsd.org/agendas-temporary/cwsd-board-meetings/
https://notice.nv.gov/


Marlette Dam Tour 
Meet with Lumos and Granite at Spooner Yard (see directions in image, 
below) at 2:45 PM to head up to dam together. Please note that this is 
an active haul route, so if you come upon any trucks as you head to the 
yard, please back up until you can safely get off the road to allow trucks 
to go by. Please do not back into any meadows. 

Page 3 of 42



AGENDA ITEM #6 

MINUTES OF LAST 

BOARD MEETING 

Page 4 of 42



DRAFT 

1 8/20/2025 

CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & 
CARSON RIVER WATERSHED COMMITTEE MEETING 

August 20, 2025 

Draft Minutes 

Chairperson Ernie Schank called the Carson Water Subconservancy District (CWSD) Board of 
Directors Meeting to order at 6:30 pm in the Alpine County Board Chambers at 99 Water St, 
Markleeville, CA 96150. A roll call of the CWSD Board of Directors was taken and a quorum was 
determined to be present. 

CWSD Directors present: 

Myles Getto (Zoom) 

Stacey Giomi 

Sharla Hales 

Tammy Hendrix (Zoom) 

Doug Johnson 

Cassi Koerner 

Ernie Schank 

Lisa Schuette 

Lee Sterrett 

Fred Stodieck  

Nathan Tolbert 

Mike Workman 

The roll call included CWSD Committee Members present:  David Griffith & Charlie Dobson.  

Director Jim Hindle was absent. 

CWSD Staff & Guests present: 

Alison Cramer, RCI (Zoom) 

Rich Harvey, AWG 

Ed James, CWSD 

Linda King, Public 

Steve King, CWSD Attorney 

Mo Loden, LRWQCB 

Brenda Hunt, CWSD 

Daniel Malmon, Waterways 

Lindsay Marsh, CWSD 

Kimra McAfee, AWG 

Kelly Nicholas, CWSD 

Debbie Neddenriep, CWSD 

Loren Roach, WRC 

Carmen Schank, Public 

Robert Twiss, AWG 

Mary Young, AWG 

Item #4 – Discussion Only:  Public Comment – None 

Item #5 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Agenda 

Chairperson Schank announced Item #9 and Item #10 are being pulled from the consent agenda 
for further discussion.. He asked for a motion to approve the agenda with those changes. 

Director Giomi was concerned that agenda items 11 and 12 had inoperative links; because of this, 
the public may not have been able to see the information contained therein. It was pointed out 
that because these items were for discussion only, it was not critical and not in violation of open 
meeting laws. Mr. James and Mr. King had discussed prior to meeting the inoperable link; 
concern is noted and well taken. The backup material for action items is not required for public 
review and counsel does not think it is a violation of the open public meeting law. Mr. James 
understands the concerns; in the past, presentations for discussion only had not been posted 
until after the Board meeting. It was requested by the Board that presentations be included with 
the Board package. Director Griffith appreciated the effort to get the material to the Board 
before the Board meeting but shares Giomi’s concerns about transparency.  

Director Hales pointed out that the public must receive any publicized information when the 
Board does. Because most of the Board members were unable to open the link(s), in essence no Page 5 of 42



DRAFT 

2 8/20/2025 

 

violation occurred. Director Workman asked if the items were time sensitive. Mr. James stated 
they were not. Director Johnson recognized that the Board wanted to have items ahead of time 
and that CWSD had tried to accommodate the that request.  

Director Johson motioned to approve the Agenda for August 20, 2025, 

with Items 9 & 10 pulled from the consent agenda for further discussion 

Director Tolbert seconded the motion and the Board voted 12-2-0, with 

Director Giomi and Committee Member Griffith opposed. 

Item #6 – For Possible Action:  Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of July 16, 2025 

Director Sterrett motioned to approve the Board Meeting Minutes of 

July 16, 2025, with a correction to the name of Donald Gilman.  

Director Giomi seconded the motion and the Board unanimously 

approved. 

**CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #7 – For Possible Action: Approval of Treasurer’s Report for July 2025 

Item #8 - For Possible Action:  Approval of Payment of Bills for July 2025 

Director Koerner made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items 7 

& 8 as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Workman and 

was unanimously approved by the Board. 

**END CONSENT AGENDA** 

Item #9 For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2025-16 Rambling River Ranches – 

Water Quality, Soil Health and Regenerative Agricultural Best Management Practices 

Project (2 years), not to exceed $80,567 (Pulled from Consent Agenda for further discussion.) 

Item #10 For Possible Action:  Approval of Agreement #2025-20 Break-A-Heart Ranch – 

Water Quality, Soil Health and Regenerative Agricultural Best Management Practices 

Project (2 years), not to exceed $56,398 (Pulled from Consent Agenda for further discussion.) 

Mr. James was asked what financial impacts these contracts had on CWSD. Mr. James stated that 
CWSD admin costs are covered by a grant and there is some staff time used as match. All other 
cost are covered by the grant.  The majority of the match would come from the ranchers. After a 
discussion between Mr. James and Mr. King, language was modified in the agreement to move 
CFR 200 and a statement was added that each organization will hire its own personnel.  

Director Giomi made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items 9 & 

10 with corrections to the language as described above and adding the 

names of the organization throughout the documents in place of “the 

Contractor.” The motion was seconded by Committee Member Griffith 

and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

Item #11 For Discussion Only:  East Fork Carson River Hot Springs Planning Overview 

Ms. Hunt presented a summary of the decisions the RCTA team had made that are captured in 
the East Fork Hot Springs report, which is an internal document not included in the packet. The 
video put together by Christopher Eddy could not render sound with Alpine County’s audio 
system, and the item was tabled.  

No action taken.  

Item #12 For Discussion Only:  West Fork Carson River Prioritization Project Update 

Page 6 of 42



DRAFT 

3 8/20/2025 

Dan Mallmann, a geologist from Waterways Consulting, gave an update on the project. The 
project was spawned from the West Fork vision plan. Funding for the grant came from an EPA 
grant through the Lahontan Water Quality Control Board (LWQCB). CWSD provides 25 percent of 
the match. Part of this effort is determining a sediment budget – where it is coming from, where 
it is going, and where it is stored. Once that is done, they will identify and address impairments. 
Future projects will be identified with community input. The sediment is coming from the upper 
basin; erosion could be from previous deposits or from beaver loss. By bringing up the channel 
relative to the floodplain, sediment will deposit in the floodplain and bring benefits. Concerns 
were brought about downstream water volume and the Alpine Decree. According to Waterways, 
the decrease in water delivery post- Faith Valley project and willow recruitment is negligible. It 
was determined that the Alpine Decree needs to be addressed in the final report to address 
downstream users’ concerns.  

No action taken.  

Item #13 For Discussion Only:  Update on Alpine Watershed Group Activities 

Kimra McAfee of AWG presented on the Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, Tuolumne, Alpine Natural 
and Working Land Collaborative’s monitoring of post-fire plantings and aspen population 
monitoring. 

No action taken.  

Item #16 For Discussion Only: Staff Reports 

Mr. James reported on the following: 

• CWSD is still waiting for the next round of CTP funding.  However, there still has not been
a NOFO posted, and the grant needs to be approved by September 30. Mr. James has
talked to the governor’s staff regarding getting their assistance but this issue is impacting
all FEMA partners.

Ms. Hunt reported on the following: 

• There will be a virtual fencing workshop Sep. 24 in Churchill County. Registration details
forthcoming.

Legal – None 

Correspondence – 

(1) Carson Diversion Dam Churchill County -FEMA Letter

(2) Douglas Assemblyman Gray resigns seat for federal appointment

(3) Record Courier Morning Report

(4) Plan includes a tale of two floods

(5) Draft NDEP Water Quality Integrated Report Comments

(6) Draft NDEP Non-Point Source State Management Plan Comments

Item #17 For Discussion Only: Directors & Committee Members Reports 

• Director Hales reported that Mr. James has been very helpful with concerns of Douglas
County regarding USGS.

• Committee Member Griffith thanked everyone for coming to Alpine County for the meeting.

Item #18 For Discussion Only: Public Comment – None 

Page 7 of 42



DRAFT 

4 8/20/2025 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairperson Schank adjourned the meeting at 
7:52 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Catrina Schambra 
Secretary to the Board 

Page 8 of 42



AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

TREASURER’S REPORT 

Page 9 of 42



Page 10 of 42



Page 11 of 42



Page 12 of 42



Page 13 of 42



9:05AM 

09/10/25 

Cash Basis 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

Floodplain Management Fund 

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
July through August 2025 

Jul -Aug 25 Budget 

5032-03 · Int. lnc.-LGIP-Floodplain 3,054.69 9,347.82 

Total Income 3,054.69 9,347.82 

Net Ordinary Income 3,054.69 9,347.82 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Income 

8000-03 · Beginning Equity 0.00 311,594.00 

Total Other Income 0.00 311,594.00 

Other Expense 
8002-03 · Trans.Out 7,374.7111 265,304.00 

Total Other Expense 7,374.71 265,304.00 

Net Other Income -7,374.71 46,290.00 

Net Income -4,320.02 55,637.82 

$ Over Budget % of Budget 

-6,293.13 32.7% 

-6,293.13 32.7% 

-6,293.13 32.7% 

-311,594.00 0.0% 

-311,594.00 0.0% 

-257,929.29 2.8% 

-257,929.29 2.8% 

-53,664.71 -15.9%

-59,957.84 -7.8%

1. Includes $1874.71 AWG payment credited to FY 24-25.

Page 14 of 42



Page 15 of 42



Page 16 of 42



Page 17 of 42



Page 18 of 42



Page 19 of 42



Page 20 of 42



Page 21 of 42



AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PAYMENT OF BILLS 

Page 22 of 42



Page 23 of 42



Page 24 of 42



Page 25 of 42



Page 26 of 42



Note:  No Petty Cash transactions in August.

Page 27 of 42



AGENDA ITEM #9 

Page 28 of 42



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Edwin James  
 
DATE: September 17, 2025 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item #9 –For Discussion Only:  Carson River Master Plan 
Presentation 

  

DISCUSSION:  Lyndsey Boyer, Carson City Open Space Manager will give a presentation 
on the Carson River Master Plan.  See presentation slides attached. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 

Page 29 of 42



Lyndsey Boyer, Open Space Manager
CWSD Board Meeting
September 17, 2025

Planning
• 1993 - Proposed by a Carson City 

Board of Supervisor (BOS)
• 13-member steering committee 
• Theme: public access to River

• 1994 - Carson River Workshop
• Over 100 attendees

• April 7, 1994 - BOS adopted A 
Resolution of Support of Planning for 
the Future of the Carson River 
• Led to the creation of the Carson 

River Advisory Committee. 

In memory of Kay Bennett, BOS and 
visionary for the Carson River

Page 30 of 42



Planning
• 1996 – Passage of Question 18 – Quality 

of Life Initiative
• 1994-2013 – Carson River Advisory 

Committee 
• 1996 –Carson River Master Plan (CRAC)
• 1996 – Carson River Master Plan written
• 2000-2025 – land acquisitions in Carson 

City
• 11 miles of river corridor protected
• Approx. 5,000 acres in the river corridor

• 2022 - Carson City seeks to update the 
Carson River Master Plan

Original Goals 
• Develop a “Carson River Corridor”

• Public access
• Land acquisitions  Open Space 

program
• ID wildlife conservation opportunities
• Balance recreation with 

natural/cultural resources 
conservation

• Minimize impacts to water 
quality/river health from urbanization

• Environmental education 
opportunities

Page 31 of 42



Page 32 of 42



National Park Service - Rivers, Trails Conservation Assistance Program
Supports locally-led conservation and outdoor recreation projects across the United States. NPS-RTCA assists communities 

and public land managers in developing or restoring parks, conservation areas, rivers, and wildlife habitats, as well as creating 
outdoor recreation opportunities and programs that engage future generations in the outdoors.

Page 33 of 42



Page 34 of 42



Page 35 of 42



Page 36 of 42



Page 37 of 42



Page 38 of 42



LYNDSEY BOYER
Open Space Manager
lboyer@carson.org | Office: 775.283.7341
3303 Butti Way #9| Carson City, NV 89701
www.carson.org/parksandrec

Page 39 of 42



STAFF REPORTS 

Page 40 of 42



CARSON WATER SUBCONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 

 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Edwin James  
 
DATE:  September 17, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #10 - For Information Only:  Staff Report  

 
DISCUSSION: The following is a list of meetings/activities attended by Ed James and staff since the last Board 
meeting of August 20, 2025: 

8/21 Ed & Brenda toured proposed projects on the West Fork of the Carson River within Alpine County with 
Alpine Watershed Group (AWG) and Waterways Staff 

8/21 Debbie presented the Carson River Floodplain Master Plan to the Douglas County Board of 
Commissioners and it was adopted 

8/22 Brenda & Kelly met with Responsive Management re:  Watershed Literacy Survey 

8/25 Ed & Lindsay met with USGS Staff re:  30-Year Regional Water Plan 

8/26 Ed & Lindsay attended 30-Year Regional Water Plan Stakeholder meeting 

8/27 Ed attended Humboldt River Economics/Conservancy Committee meeting 

8/27 Brenda, Debbie, Lindsay & Kelly hosted Carson River Coalition (CRC) Education & Outreach Working 
Group quarterly meeting 

8/27 Staff meeting (all) 

8/27 Ed & Catrina met with US Bank relationship manager to review terms of CWSD checking account 

8/28 Brenda attended Green Infrastructure for Small Water Systems Webinar 

9/2-5 Debbie & Lindsay attended 2025 Floodplain Management Association Conference in Sacramento 

9/2 Ed met with USGS Staff re:  30-Year Regional Water Plan Outline 

9/3 Brenda & Kelly met with US EPA to review the Pollution Load Estimation Tool (PLET) 

9/4 Brenda & Kelly attended Carson City Carson River Master Plan meeting  

9/9 Debbie attended Carson City High Water Mark Working Group meeting 

9/12 Ed gave a presentation to Humboldt River Basin Water Authority re: Conservancy Districts 

9/15 Debbie attended National Weather Service (NWS) Flood Preparedness Workshop in Reno 

9/15 Staff meeting (all) 

9/16-17  Ed & Lindsay attended the Nevada Water Resources Association (NWRA) Fall Symposium in Reno 

9/16-17  Brenda attended the Integrated Watershed Planning & Management Workshop  in Denver 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 

Page 41 of 42



NO CORRESPONDENCE 

Page 42 of 42


	9-17-25 #1 Agenda
	9-17-25 #2 MAP TO MARLETTE TOUR
	#6 insert (last minutes)
	9-17-25 #6 8-20-25  Bd Mtg Mins (draft)
	#7 insert (TreasRpt)
	9-17-25 #7 TREASURERS REPORT
	#8 insert (Pmt of Bills)
	9-17-25 #8 BILLS PAID REPORT
	#9 insert
	9-17-25 #9 Carson River Master Plan Presentation
	9-17-25 #9A Presentation Slides (2-up)
	Staff reports
	9-17-25 #10 STAFF REPORT
	CORRESPONDENCE insert



